
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Friday, 26 January 2024 

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

email: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of Development Control Committee, which will be held in 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on 

Monday, 5 February 2024 at 11.00 am. 

 

 
Mr. Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 
 

To: Members of the Development Control Committee: 

 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Michael Brooker (Vice-Chair), Alaa Al-Yousuf, Lidia 

Arciszewska, Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Rachel Crouch, Colin Dingwall, Phil 

Godfrey, Andy Goodwin, Jeff Haine, David Jackson, Nick Leverton, Dan Levy, Andrew 

Lyon, Lysette Nicholls, Rosie Pearson, Rizvana Poole, Andrew Prosser, Harry St John, 

Dean Temple, Mark Walker, Adrian Walsh and Alistair Wray. 

 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk


 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

To receive any Apologies for Absence from members of the Committee.  

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any Declarations of Interest from Members of the Committee, on any items 

to be considered at the meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of Previous Meetings (Pages 3 - 12) 

To approve the minutes of the previous meetings, held on Monday 27 March 2023 and 

Wednesday 24 May 2024. 

 

4.   Botley West Solar Farm - Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP) - Response 

to Statutory Pre-Application Consultation. (Pages 13 - 40) 

Purpose: 

To agree a response to the Botley West Solar Farm (BWSF) statutory consultation, and 

notification of the BWSF pursuant to Section 42 of the Planning Act 2008. 

 
Recommendations: 

That the Development Control Committee Resolves to: 

1) Endorse the contents of the draft consultation response; 

2) Agree submission of the consultation response by the consultation deadline. 

 

5.   Frequency of Sub-Committee Meetings (Pages 41 - 44) 

Purpose:  

To allow the Development Control Committee to consider the frequency of Sub-

Committee meetings. 

 

Recommendations:  

That the Development Control Committee Resolves to: 

1. Agree that the frequency of sub-committee meetings in 2024/25 will be either: 

a) 4-weekly; or 

b) monthly. 

 

6.   Notification Policy  

Purpose:  

To consider the current notification policy including any feedback from Members. 

The Chair of the Development Control Committee has requested that this item be 

added to the meeting agenda as a discussion item. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Development Control Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB at 10.00 am on 

Monday, 27 March 2023 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Elizabeth Poskitt (Chair), Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair), Joy Aitman, Alaa Al-Yousuf, 

Lidia Arciszewska, Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Michael Brooker, Colin Dingwall, Harry 

Eaglestone, Ted Fenton, Andy Goodwin, Andy Graham, Jeff Haine, Richard Langridge, Nick 

Leverton, Andrew Prosser, Geoff Saul, Alaric Smith, Dean Temple and Alex Wilson. 

Officers: Phil Shaw (Business Manager - Development Management), Andrew Thomson (Lead 

Planning Policy and Implementation Officer), Max Thompson (Democratic Services Manager), 

and Michelle Ouzman (Strategic Support Officer). 

Other Councillors in attendance: Nil.  

12 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 7 November 2022, were approved and 

signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

13 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies were received from the following Councillors: 

C Maynard, L Nicholls & D Jackson. 

Councillor Dan Levy attended as a substitute for Councillor Maynard. 

Councillor Andy Graham attended as a substitute for Councillor Jackson. 

14 Declarations of Interest  

Councillor Andrew Beaney stated that he had attended the first forum on the item considered 

at Agenda Item 5 (Application for Development – 22/03415/FUL). 

15 Participation of the Public  

There was no separate public participation at the meeting, other than participation detailed 

within Agenda Item 5 (Application for Development – 22/03415/FUL). 

16 Application for Development - 22/03415/FUL - The Driving Centre, Enstone Airfield OX7 

4DR  

Phil Shaw, Business Manager (Development Management), introduced the application, for the 

construction of buildings for automotive museum with corporate hospitality (club space, 

accommodation for members, food and beverage and retail); museum exhibition building; 

workshops; store; energy centre; construction of supporting holiday homes; amenity facilities; 

formation of car exercise road; formation of landscaped grounds; associated site services and 

other works (as amended). 

Phil Shaw drew the Committee’s attention to the additional representations circulated prior of 

the meeting, and summarised the main points of the additional subsequent representations 

made to the committee. Phil Shaw presented a large scale presentation relating to the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Development Control Committee 

27/March2023 

 

 

application. Phil Shaw reminded the committee prior to the presentation what was previously 

approved when the outline application was considered. 

Alex Postan, Roger Tyers, Michael Ergatoudis, Kieran Hedigan and Andrew Eaton spoke in 

favour of the application. Copies of the speeches are attached to the original copy of the 

minutes. 

Councillor Paul North (Sandford St. Martin Parish Council), Councillor Philip Shaw (Enstone 

Parish Council), Emily Daley, Hamish Laing, and Frederick Hill spoke in objection to the 

application. Copies of the speeches are attached to the original copy of the minutes. 

The Chair read out a pre-submitted statement from Westcote Barton Parish Council in 

support of the application. A copy of the speech is attached to the original copy of the minutes 

John Mitchinson also spoke relating to the application, but was keen to stress that his 

statement, a copy of which is attached to the original copy of the minutes, was neither in 

support nor objection to the application. 

Phil Shaw continued with the presentation which clarified the following points: 

 Representations received regarding the application; 

 Light pollution from the site; 

 Economic benefits of the site and area; 

 Traffic and highways impacts; 

 Non-Road traffic provisions; 

 Landscape and visual impacts; 

 Building heights; 

 Accommodation provisions; 

 Visitor attractions; 

 Biodiversity implications; 

 Noise mitigation; 

 History of the site; 

 Environmental impacts; 

 Section106 Agreements; 

 Security arrangements; 

 Impacts on Enstone Airfield; 

 Sustainability; 

 Alignment with the Local Plan; 

 Accessibility to the site. 

 

 

Page 4



Development Control Committee 

27/March2023 

 

 

Phil Shaw guided the Committee through the 2 stage planning balance exercise as applied to 

the assessment of the impact of the scheme on the heritage assets in the vicinity of the site 

Phil Shaw concluded that the planning officer’s recommendations were for conditional 

approval, subject to the applicant first entering into a legal agreement, and to the resolution of 

AQMA & ecology matters as per the verbal updates that had arrived just before the meeting. 

The Chair invited the Committee to discuss the application, which raised the following points: 

 Access to the site by means of non-road transport means; 

 Employment opportunities arising from the site; 

 Car parking at the site for employees; 

 Through routes in proximity to the site; 

 S106 implications; 

 Environmental implications; 

 Speed of traffic in the vicinity of the site; 

 Use of the site track for racing or procession of vehicles; 

 Provision of Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs); 

 Expansion limitation; 

 Management of excess surface water and sewage treatment with Thames Water; 

 Membership quantities of the site and motor club; 

 Potential community membership for local residents; 

 Sizing of accommodation units on the site; 

 Glare of windows from sunlight and brightness in summer months; 

 Potential disposal of subsequently identified unexploded ordinances; 

 Impact of affordable housing in the area; 

 Height of buildings compared to previous application; 

 Assessments of travel impacts on local area; 

 Electronic Vehicle (EV) charging provisions within site car parks. 

Councillor Andrew Beaney proposed a deferral of the application to allow for more time to 

examine the application and its full detail. This was seconded by Councillor Alex Wilson. 

In debate, the work of the officers was praised, and attention paid to were vast benefits of the 

application, such as tourism and benefit to the local economy. Deferral was not considered 

appropriate due to a perceived high level of detail being in front of the committee during the 

meeting, and there would be no benefit of delaying the application, thus risking non-

determination. It was noted that finer details would need to be considered, and that sufficient 

time was available during the negotiations on the 106 agreement, and that deferral would not 

help such matters in order to reach a resolution. 

 

Page 5



Development Control Committee 

27/March2023 

 

 

The proposed deferral was put to a vote. There were 2 votes in favour, 17 against and 2 

abstentions. 

The deferral was defeated. 

Councillor Ted Fenton proposed that the application be approved conditionally, in line with 

officer’s recommendations, subject to the final wording of the conditions as stated within the 

report being agreed to address some of the detailed points raised by Cllr Beaney. This was 

seconded by Councillor Richard Langridge and was put to a vote. 

There were 18 votes in favour, 3 votes against and Nil abstentions. The vote carried. 

Committee Resolved to: 

1. Conditionally approve the application in line with officer recommendations, subject to 

the conditions for approval as stated within the report being finalised by officers 

following discussion with Cllrs Poskitt, Beaney and Goodwin. 

Councillors Beaney, Wilson and Prosser requested that their votes “against” were put on 

record. This was subsequently fulfilled by Democratic Services. 

 

The Chair then adjourned the meeting for a 5 minute comfort break and to allow the public 

participants to leave the Council Chamber. The Meeting was adjourned at 12.44pm, and 

reconvened at 12.49pm. 

 

17 Botley West Solar Farm - Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP).  

Andrew Thomson, Lead Planning Policy and Implementation Officer, introduced the report, 

which explained the Development Consent Order (DCO) process for determining 

applications for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) and to discuss the 

mechanisms for decision making on NSIP proposals. 

Whilst it was accepted that there was no decision to be made at the meeting, it was noted 
that the Botley West Solar Farm NSIP, will potentially effect a number of parishes within West 

Oxfordshire and neighbouring districts. It was noted that Nationally Significant Infrastructure 

Projects (NSIPs) are projects of certain types, over a certain size, which are considered by the 

Government to be so big and nationally important that permission to build them needs to be 

given at a national level, by the responsible Government minister (the ‘Secretary of State’). 

The Botley West Solar Farm proposal is the first NSIP to be proposed for West Oxfordshire. 

The proposal covers an area of approximately 1,400 hectares and affects a number of parishes. 

The developer for the proposed Botley West Solar Farm has published an indicative timetable 

for the DCO process, with submission of the application due in winter 2023. There are a 

number of key milestones during the process that must be met before the final application is 

submitted. 

In debate, it was highlighted that the Secretary of State who’s responsibility the proposal will 

fall under will be The Rt. Hon Grant Shapps MP, Secretary of State for Energy Security and 

Net Zero.  

Clarification was sought on which Committee of the Council was retain oversight of the 

proposals, and it was confirmed by the Lead Planning Policy and Implementation Officer that 

Page 6



Development Control Committee 

27/March2023 

 

 

the Development Control Committee would be the Committee designated for consultation as 

appropriate, given that the applicant will apply for a Development Consent Order. 

Members stated that there will need to be due diligence exercised by the Council as a Planning 

Authority, and that there may be a time where Council come to a view on the proposals. The 

evidence will be presented in various stages, and that Members will need to keep views to a 

lower profile, to aid the Council’s reputation as a planning authority. It was also highlighted 

that the discussion was to state the process for the proposals, rather than the proposal itself. 

Councillor Andrew Beaney and rose to thank the Chair for her stewardship of the meeting 

given that the two Agenda Items were deemed as ‘hefty’ business. Councillor Beaney also 

highlighted that it was seen that there was not sufficient time for debate given that there was 

large public participation at the meeting, and that having two formal planning meetings on the 

same day did not help the Committee’s cause. 

Councillor Richard Langridge proposed that the Committee note the content of the report, in 

line with Officer recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Ted Fenton, was put to 

vote and was agreed unanimously by the Committee. 

Committee Resolved to: 

1. Note the information contained in the report. 

 

 

The Meeting closed at 1.07 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Development Control Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.27 pm on Wednesday, 24 May 2023 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Michael Brooker (Vice-Chair), Alaa Al-Yousuf, Hugo 

Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Rachel Crouch, Colin Dingwall, Phil Godfrey, Andy Goodwin, Andy 

Graham, Jeff Haine, David Jackson, Nick Leverton, Andrew Lyon, Charlie Maynard, Lysette 

Nicholls, Rizvana Poole, Andrew Prosser, Harry St John, Tim Sumner, Mark Walker, Adrian 

Walsh, Alex Wilson and Alistair Wray 

Officers: Giles Hughes (Chief Executive), Andrew Brown (Business Manager, Democratic 

Services and Interim Monitoring Officer), Max Thompson (Senior Democratic Services 

Officer), Barry Clack (Communications Officer), Michelle Ouzman (Democratic Services 

Officer), Anne Learmonth (Democratic Services Officer), and Maria Harper (Democratic 

Services Administrator). 

Other Councillors in attendance:  Joy Aitman, Thomas Ashby, Andrew Coles, David Cooper, 

Jane Doughty, Duncan Enright, Edward James, Mark Johnson, Natalie King, Liz Leffman, Dan 

Levy, Martin McBride, Michele Mead, David Melvin, Mathew Parkinson, Rosie Pearson, 

Elizabeth Poskitt, Carl Rylett, Geoff Saul, Sandra Simpson, Ruth Smith and Liam Walker 

18 Election of Chair  

The Chair of the Council, Councillor Andrew Coles, opened the meeting.  

Democratic Services relayed to Council the names of Members who had been appointed to 

the Council’s Development Control Committee, who were: 

Councillors: 

 Julian Cooper  

 Andy Goodwin 

 David Jackson 

 Charlie Maynard 

 Hugo Ashton 

 Phil Godfrey 

 Lidia Arciszewska  

 Alistair Wray 

 Tim Sumner 

 Colin Dingwall 

 Adrian Walsh 

 Nick Leverton 

 Lysette Nicholls 

 Andrew Beaney 

 Alaa Al-Yousuf  

 Dean Temple 

 Jeff Haine  

 Michael Brooker 

 Andrew Lyon 

 Rachel Crouch 

Page 9



Development Control Committee 

24/May2023 

 

 

 Rizvana Poole 

 Mark Walker  

 Andrew Prosser  

 Harry St.John 

 

The Chair of the Council, Councillor Andrew Coles, asked Council for nominations to the 

position of Chair of Development Control Committee for the municipal year 2023/2024. 

 

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt, proposed that Councillor Julian Cooper be appointed to the 
position of Chair of Development Control Committee for the municipal year 2023/2024. This 

was seconded by Councillor Andrew Prosser and was put to a vote. The vote carried. 

Council Resolved to: 

Appoint Councillor Julian Cooper to the position of Chair of Development Control 

Committee for the municipal year 2023/2024. 

19 Appointment of Vice Chair  

The Chair of Development Control Committee, Councillor Julian Cooper, asked Council for 

nominations to the position of Vice-Chair of Development Control Committee for the 

municipal year 2023/2024. 

Councillor Julian Cooper, proposed that Councillor Michael Brooker be appointed to the 

position of Vice-Chair of Development Control Committee for the municipal year 2023/2024. 

This was seconded by Councillor Andrew Prosser and was put to a vote. The vote carried. 

Council Resolved to: 

Appoint Councillor Michael Brooker to the position of Vice-Chair of Development Control 

Committee for the municipal year 2023/2024. 

20 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from: 

Councillors Lidia Arciszewska and Dean Temple. 

Councillor Andy Graham substituted for Councillor Lidia Arciszewska. 

Councillor Alex Wilson substituted for Councillor Dean Temple.  

21 Appointment of Sub Committees Lowlands and Uplands  

Democratic Services relayed to Council the name of Members who had been nominated to 

the Council’s Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee, who were: 

Councillors: 

 Andy Goodwin; 

 Charlie Maynard; 

 Alistair Wray; 

 Julian Cooper; (as Chair of Development Control Committee) 

 Phil Godfrey; 

Page 10



Development Control Committee 

24/May2023 

 

 

 Colin Dingwall; 

 Adrian Walsh; 

 Nick Leverton; 

 Lysette Nicholls;  

 Michael Brooker; 

 Rachel Crouch; 

 Andrew Lyon; 

 Andrew Prosser; 

 Harry St. John;  

 

Democratic Services relayed to Council the names of Members who had been nominated to 

the Council’s Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee, who were: 

Councillors: 

 

 David Jackson; 

 Julian Cooper; 

 Hugo Jackson;  

 Lidia Arciszewska; 

 Tim Sumner; 

 Alaa Al-Yousuf; 

 Dean Temple; 

 Jeff Haine;  

 Andrew Beaney; 

 Rizvana Poole;  

 Mark Walker; 

 

The Chair of the Development Control Committee, Councillor Julian Cooper proposed that 

Council agree the recommendations in the report including the appointments to the Lowlands 

and Uplands Area Planning Sub Committee. This was seconded by Councillor Michael 

Brooker, was put to a vote, and was unanimously agreed by Council. 

 

Committee Resolved to: 

1. Agree that seats on the Lowlands Sub-Committee and the Uplands Sub-Committee 

will be allocated based on ward rather than political balance, in accordance with 

Section 17 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989; 

Page 11



Development Control Committee 

24/May2023 

 

 

2. Appoint the Chair of the Development Control Committee to the Lowlands Sub-

Committee and the Uplands Sub-Committee; 

3. Appoint a further 13 Members of the Development Control Committee who 

represent wards in the Lowlands area of the district to the Lowlands Sub-

Committee; 

4. Appoint a further 10 Members of the Development Control Committee who 

represent wards in the Uplands area of the district to the Uplands Sub-Committee; 

5. Agree that the Vice Chair of the Development Control Committee will attend 

meetings of the Sub-Committee they are not appointed to as a non-voting member; 

6. Note that any Member of the Council, having undertaken planning training, is 

permitted to substitute for a Member of a planning sub-committee, in accordance 

with the wishes of the Member being substituted; 

Additional recommendation 7: 

7. Request that the Constitution Working Group review the rules around the sizes of 

the planning sub-committees. 

 

The Meeting closed at 2.30 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 12



 
 
 
 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and Date of 

Committee 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 5 FEBRUARY 2024 

Subject BOTLEY WEST SOLAR FARM – NATIONALLY SIGNIFICANT 

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT (NSIP) – RESPONSE TO STATUTORY 

PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION. 

Wards Affected All. 

Accountable Members Councillor Julian Cooper – Chair of Development Control Committee. 

Email: julian.cooper@westoxon.gov.uk   

Councillor Charlie Maynard – Executive Member for Planning and 

Sustainability.  

Email: charlie.maynard@westoxon.gov.uk   

Accountable Officer 

 
Phil Shaw – Business Manager, Development Management. 

Email: phil.shaw@westoxon.gov.uk   

Report author Andrew Thomson – Lead Planning Policy and Implementation Officer. 

Email: andrew.thomson@westoxon.gov.uk     

Purpose To agree a response to the Botley West Solar Farm (BWSF) statutory 

consultation, and notification of the BWSF pursuant to Section 42 of the 

Planning Act 2008. 

Annex Annex A – Draft Consultation Response 

Recommendations That the Development Control Committee Resolves to: 

1) Endorse the contents of the draft consultation response; 

2) Agree submission of the consultation response by the consultation 

deadline. 

Corporate Priorities  Putting Residents First 

 A Good Quality of Life for All 

 A Better Environment for People and Wildlife 

 Responding to the Climate and Ecological Emergency 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

mailto:julian.cooper@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:charlie.maynard@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:phil.shaw@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.thomson@westoxon.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

Key Decision NO 

Exempt NO  

Consultees/ 

Consultation  

WODC Landscape Officer 

WODC Heritage and Conservation Officer 

 

  

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 West Oxfordshire District Council are responding to the Applicant’s consultation on the 

Botley West Solar Farm proposals. 

1.2 WODC have been consulted on the proposals as a host authority, in accordance with section 

42 of the 2008 Planning Act. 

1.3 A draft consultation response is attached at Appendix 1 and covers matters relating to the 

developer’s proposals including their draft masterplan and the content of their Preliminary 

Environmental Information report (PEIR)  

1.4 WODC have concerns about the potential environmental impacts of the proposal as currently 

presented including; 

 Landscape character and visual impacts of the proposal; 

 Impacts on the Green Belt; 

 Impacts on historic environment and the setting of heritage assets; 

 Impacts on the setting of Blenheim Palace World heritage Site. 

1.5 WODC make a number of suggestions as to how negative impacts of the proposal could be 

minimised including; 

 Restriction of development in certain locations; 

 Focus of environmental enhancements in certain locations; 

 Opportunities for community benefits; 

1.6 WODC recognise that aspects of the environmental assessment are incomplete at this stage 

and that further detail will be presented through the Environmental Statement when the DCO 

application is made. 

1.7 WODC is unable to comment on the suitability and effectiveness of all proposed design and 

mitigation measures at this point, in the absence of full environmental assessment and 

landscape and ecology management plans. 

1.8 The council will make a detailed assessment of local impacts through the preparation of a 

Local Impact Report should the Botley West DCO application proceed to Examination. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 Photovolt Development Partners (PVDP) are proposing a new solar farm in the west of 

Oxfordshire called Botley West Solar Farm. It is proposed that Botley West Solar Farm could 

deliver 840 Megawatts (MW) of clean affordable power to the National Grid. 

2.2 The proposed Botley West Solar Farm will connect into a new National Grid substation, to 

be built and located west of Botley, hence the name Botley West. 

Page 15



 
 
 
 

2.3 Proposals are for a site area of approximately 1,300 hectares, excluding connecting cable 

routes, within the administrative areas of West Oxfordshire, Cherwell and Vale of White 

Horse. Within the site, proposals are for installation of solar panels and other infrastructure 

on approximately 890 hectares, leaving significant areas for mitigation and enhancements for 

the local landscape, wildlife and recreational use.  

2.4 The proposed solar farm falls within the definition of a ‘nationally significant infrastructure 

project’ (NSIP) under Section 14(1)(a) and 15(2) of the Planning Act 2008 (‘the Act’) as the 

construction of a generating station with a capacity of more than 50 MW.  

2.5 As the proposed NSIP is located within West Oxfordshire, WODC is regarded as a host 

authority for the purpose of the Development Consent Order process. 

2.6 The DCO process comprises six stages, with requirements for stakeholder engagement and 

assessment, as well as the preparation of supporting documentation at each stage. 

2.7 Host authorities have a particular role throughout the DCO process and will be called upon 

at key stages, to respond to proposals, to submit representations and to engage in the 

Examination of the proposals. 

2.8 This statutory consultation on the solar farm proposals forms part of the pre-application stage 

(stage 1) of the DCO process. 

2.9 The Applicant is inviting feedback through this consultation on updated proposals, including 

site layout and cable routes, the information presented in the Preliminary Environmental 

Information Report (PEIR), proposed environmental enhancement measures including 

biodiversity net gain and new recreational connectivity across the site and proposed mitigation 

measures to minimise or avoid potential impacts on the environment and local communities. 

2.10 Representations received through this consultation will be used by the applicant to inform 

their development proposals and guide the preparation of further environmental assessment. 

2.11 The Applicant will consider and have regard to all responses received when developing its 

Application for a Development Consent Order. Responses and representations will form the 

basis of a Consultation Report that will be one of the factors taken into consideration by the 

Secretary of State when deciding whether the Application can be accepted for Examination. 

2.12 WODC wish to respond to the consultation at this stage and to take the opportunity to guide 

and influence the proposals prior to any application to the Secretary of State for a 

Development Consent Order. 

2.13 The proposed response to the consultation is attached at Appendix 1. 

2.14 This response is made to the Applicant’s pre-application statutory consultation. WODC will 

have further opportunities to respond to the proposals and provide detailed assessment of 

impacts at later stages of the DCO process, should the application be accepted for 

Examination. 

 

 

 

Page 16



 
 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1 The alternative option would be to not submit a response to the statutory consultation. 

Failure to submit a response at this stage would represent a missed opportunity for the district 

council to influence the proposals prior to the submission of the DCO application. 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There is potential for a significant amount of officer time to be dedicated to engaging with the 

DCO process. Opportunities for a Planning Performance Agreement will be sought, where it 

is considered that officer engagement will impact the Council’s ability to perform its statutory 

functions. 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The district council are a statutory consultee on these proposals and are not the decision 

making authority. It is considered that there are no legal implications relating to the report 

and proposed consultation response. 

6. RISK ASSESSMENT 

6.1 The district council are a statutory consultee on these proposals and are not the decision 

making authority. It is considered that there are no risks associated with the report and the 

proposed consultation response. 

7. EQUALITIES IMPACT 

7.1 It is considered that the Botley West Solar Farm proposal will not have any differential 

negative impact on any group, with protected characteristics, in West Oxfordshire. 

8. CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 The Botley West Solar Farm proposal has the potential to generate significant amount of 

renewable energy, contributing to the decarbonisation of the National Grid and helping to 

achieve net zero carbon targets by 2050. 

8.2 The scale and location of the proposal would likely result in significant impacts on biodiversity 

and natural capital. 

8.3 There is potential for the proposal to result in both positive and negative impacts, both in 

terms of addressing the causes and mitigating the impacts of climate change. 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

9.1 The Applicant has published a wide range of documentation relating to their proposals, 

consultation and the DCO process. All information is available via the Applicant’s website; 

https://botleywest.co.uk/document_library.html  

Page 17

https://botleywest.co.uk/document_library.html


This page is intentionally left blank



Introduction 

 

1.1 West Oxfordshire District Council welcomes the opportunity to respond to this consultation on the 

Botley West Solar Farm proposals.  

 

1.2 The district council recognises the importance of responding to consultation at this stage, as an 

opportunity to guide and influence the proposals prior to any application to the Secretary of State for 

a Development Consent Order. 

 

1.3 West Oxfordshire District Council would like to take this opportunity to provide feedback on the 

proposed development, site location and layout, the information presented in the Preliminary 

Environmental Information Report (PEIR) as well as any proposed environmental enhancement and 

mitigation measures. 

 

1.4 WODC’s response is reflective of the indicative nature of the proposals at this consultation stage and 

does not comprise a full detailed assessment of the local impacts of the proposed solar farm. Should 

the DCO application be accepted for Examination, WODC will submit a Local Impact Report (LIR) 

when invited to do so, which will provide a detailed assessment of the local impacts of the scheme.  

 

1.5 WODC reserve the right to submit more detailed responses to the proposals at the appropriate stage 

of the DCO process as and when more details of the scheme and its impacts become available.   

 

Structure of Response 

 

2.1 The response to the consultation is structured and ordered in the same manner as Applicant’s website 

and document library1. The district council’s response will focus on the site location and illustrative 

masterplan, before dealing with each chapter of the Preliminary Environmental Information Report in 

turn for ease of reference. 

 

2.2 This will enable the district council to focus on the nature, scale and location of the proposal, before 

focussing on thematic chapters and specific types of impact that are likely to arise as a result of the 

proposal, in order to highlight any particular areas of concern and where aspects of the proposal are 

more likely to be supported. 

 

2.3 Specific points raised by WODC and responses to the consultation are highlighted in bold text through 

the chapters below. 

 

2.4 The response relates to the proposal and potential significant impacts within the administrative area 

of West Oxfordshire District Council only. 

 

  

                                                           
1 https://botleywest.co.uk/document_library.html  

Page 19

https://botleywest.co.uk/document_library.html


Phase 2 Consultation – Botley West Solar Farm 

 

3.1 The proposals for the Botley West Solar Farm have been updated since the initial round of consultation 

that was held between November and December 2022. 

 

3.2 The Applicant states that they have considered feedback during the initial consultation in order to 

develop proposals further, refine the site layout and to guide the environmental assessment of the 

proposals. 

 

3.3 The Applicant is inviting feedback through this consultation on; 

 

 Updated proposals, including site layout and cable routes 

 The information presented in the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR) 

 Proposed environmental enhancement measures including biodiversity net gain and new 

recreational connectivity across the site 

 Proposed mitigation measures to minimise or avoid potential impacts on the environment and 

local communities. 

 

3.4 The Applicant in their phase 2 community consultation leaflet summarises the need case for the Botley 

West Solar Farm. It reflects on the effects and threats of climate change including increased 

temperatures and wildfires and impacts on food production and highlights the benefits of renewable 

energy generation in reducing carbon emissions and addressing the causes of climate change. 

 

3.5 The ambitious and legally binding targets of achieving net zero carbon emissions by 2050, the 

governments ambitions of achieving a five-fold increase in solar energy generation capacity by 2035 

and the ambitions of the Oxfordshire Energy Strategy are all cited in the Applicant’s overview of the 

need for the Botley West Solar Farm. 

 

3.6 National Policy Statement EN-1 states that;  

The Secretary of State should assess all applications for development consent for the types of 

infrastructure covered by this NPS on the basis that the government has demonstrated that there is a 

need for those types of infrastructure which is urgent, as described for each of them in this Part. In 

addition, the Secretary of State has determined that substantial weight should be given to this need 

when considering applications for development consent under the Planning Act 2008. The Secretary 

of State is not required to consider separately the specific contribution of any individual project to 

satisfying the need established in this NPS. 

3.7 This consultation response does not focus on the need case for the proposed solar farm, although it 

is noted that the Applicant will seek to demonstrate exceptional circumstances, to justify development 

in the Green Belt as part of their DCO application. The need for utility scale solar generation schemes 

is likely to form part of the argument for justifying development in the Green Belt. 

 

3.8 National Policy Statements clearly set out a range of specific and generic impacts that should be 

considered when determining applications for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects and it is 

these key areas that this representation will focus. 

 

3.9 The applicant confirms that they have secured a grid connection with National Grid, to provide 

840MW of energy to the Grid. 

 

Page 20



The Site 

3.10 The site is divided into three distinct areas, the Northern Site, the Central Site and the Southern Site. 

 

3.11 The proposed development site covers an area of 1,300 hectares and the proposed area of installed 

panels (excluding internal roads and support areas) is approximately 890 ha. This is a reduction in the 

total site area from the initial consultation which covered a total area of 1,400 hectares with 1,000 

hectares of panels and other types of infrastructure. 

 

3.12 As proposed, and if approved, the Botley West Solar Farm would be the largest ground mounted solar 

farm in the UK. In terms of ground coverage, the installed area of solar panels would be broadly 

equivalent to the size of Carterton and Brize Norton Air Base combined. 

 

3.13 The Applicant seeks consent to install and operate approximately 840MWe of solar generation 

development in parts of West Oxfordshire District Council, Cherwell District Council and Vale of 

White Horse District Council.  

 

3.14 The vast majority of the proposed development site is located in West Oxfordshire district. 

  

Page 21



The Masterplan 

 

4.1 The applicant’s draft masterplan illustrates the scale of the proposed solar farm development across 

three distinct areas, the northern section, central section and southern section. 

 

4.2 The masterplan documents show the location of existing landscape elements such as hedgerows and 

woodlands, as well as indicative locations for proposed landscape and infrastructure elements such as 

inverters and sub stations, additional woodland planting and skylark plots. 

 

4.3 The masterplan documents are treated as indicative at this stage, recognising that the design process 

for the proposed solar farm is intended to be iterative, with ongoing environmental assessment and 

stakeholder engagement being used to refine the detailed design of the proposed solar farm. 

 

4.4 Applying “good design” to energy projects should produce sustainable infrastructure sensitive to place, 

including impacts on heritage, efficient in the use of natural resources, including land-use, and energy 

used in their construction and operation. 

 

4.5 WODC welcome the opportunity to respond to the applicant’s proposed masterplan, recognising 

that the pre-application stage of the DCO process provides the best opportunity to influence the 

proposals before they are submitted for examination. Consideration will be given to whether good 

design principles have been applied to the refinement of the proposed scheme. 

 

4.6 The proposed masterplan provides a useful mechanism through which WODC can respond to the 

consultation, highlighting potential areas of concern as well potential areas of refinement and 

enhancement to mitigate potential impacts on local communities and environmental and heritage 

assets. 

 

4.7 Further comment is provided in relation to the thematic elements of the PEIR as appropriate.  

 

Northern Area – Wootton, Tackley and Woodstock 

 

4.8 The masterplan for the northern area shows an extensive and relatively dense configuration of solar 

panels occupying elevated land between the settlements of Wootton to the west, Tackley to the east 

and Woodstock to the south west. 

 

4.9 A description of the northern area is provided within the existing baseline chapter of the PEIR, WODC 

is broadly content with the description of the baseline characteristics of this location in that it is 

relatively flat, relatively unconstrained by statutory ecological designations, is an area at low risk from 

fluvial flooding and that there areas of best and most versatile agricultural land present within the 

development area. 

 

4.10 Significant to the baseline assessment of the northern area are the presence of historical features 

within and in close proximity to the site, particularly the presence of a Scheduled Monument adjacent 

to Sansom’s Cottages which the northern development area largely encloses.  

 

4.11 There is an extensive public right of way (PRoW) network within and around this Northern Site, most 

prominently the Oxfordshire Way, which crosses the Site on an east-west bearing. The 416/11/20 

bridleway also runs in a north-south bearing through the Site for almost its entire length. 

 

Page 22



4.12 Although development is excluded from the Scheduled Monument and mitigation measures have been 

proposed to accommodate development in areas of archaeological interest, additional buffering in 

areas affecting the setting of the Scheduled Monument, Listed Buildings and Akeman Street may be 

beneficial. Land slopes down to the south from bridleway 416/21/10 east of Milford Bridge to Akeman 

Street making the landscape more prominent and open in this location. Limiting development in this 

area could further reduce the magnitude and significance of impacts against a range of sensitive 

receptors in this location. 

 

4.13 Development locations to the north east of Woodstock are predominantly located within Cherwell 

district. It is noted that the applicant has identified the potential for significant negative impacts arising 

from development east of Banbury Road, primarily related to the scale of the proposed substation 

and proximity to the public rights of way network. From a West Oxfordshire perspective, 

development in this location would be sufficiently distant and screened to avoid significant detrimental 

impacts on heritage assets, although there would be significant negative impacts on sensitive receptors 

such as users of the prow network. 

 

4.14 It is noted that there are residential properties in close proximity to the project area in the Northern 

Site. Consideration should be given as to whether a minimum buffer distance between development 

and residential properties would be appropriate to minimise impacts on residents. 

 

Central Area – Bladon, Church Hanborough, Eynsham, Cassington 

 

4.15 The central area is the largest of the three proposed development areas comprising a total land area 

of approximately 870ha. A description of the baseline characteristics of the Central Area is provided 

within the Existing Baseline Chapter of the PEIR. 

 

4.16 WODC are largely content with the high-level summary of the baseline conditions for the Central 

Area, including recognition of the close proximity of settlements to the site boundary. There are 

significant areas of flood risk in the Central Area related to the River Evenlode, although the majority 

of the area is located within flood zone 1 and is at low risk of fluvial flooding. There are no statutory 

ecological designations within the site, but there are three areas of Ancient Woodland contained 

within the site area. There are concentrations of Listed Buildings within and around the site boundary, 

particularly focused in nearby settlements and their associated Conservation Areas. Parts of the 

Central Area are located in close proximity to the Blenheim Palace World Heritage Site and there is 

a Scheduled Monument located at Bladon Heath. 

 

4.17 Most of the Central Area is located within the Oxford Green Belt with only a small area to the west 

of Lower Road outside of the Green Belt. The predominant land use in the area is arable farming and 

a significant area of the Central Area is classed as Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land. The 

Central Area spans two Landscape Character Areas, the Eynsham Vale and the Eastern Parks and 

Valleys. Although not necessarily reflected in the applicant’s baseline assessment, much of the 

landscape is characterised by rolling farmland, some of which has moderate intervisibility, but much of 

which is particularly open and visually sensitive. 

 

4.18 WODC regard the Central Area as being particularly sensitive to new development with potential for 

impacts on landscape, heritage, ecology, Green Belt, amenity and agricultural land. There is also 

potential for cumulative impacts in combination with other strategic development in the area such as 

that proposed at Salt Cross Garden Village. 

 

Page 23



4.19 There are other plans and strategies that are relevant to the area including the Wychwood Forest 

Project, Blenheim World Heritage Site Management Plan and Evenlode Catchment Management Plan 

and so consideration should be given as to whether development in this area is consistent with their 

objectives, particularly those for landscape and ecological protection and enhancement.  

 

4.20 WODC suggest that removal of development areas from the visually exposed and prominent valley 

sides to the west of Lower Road and valley sides of the River Evenlode could minimise negative impacts 

of the proposal. This will reduce potential for negative landscape character impacts by restricting 

development in visually prominent and exposed locations and minimise impacts on the setting of 

Church Hanborough Conservation Area. 

 

4.21 WODC also suggested that development be restricted to the north of Cassington. Although the 

masterplan indicates that development would be set back from the edge of the settlement in this 

location, land rises steeply to the north of the settlement making any development in this location 

prominent and visually exposed. This area is also within the Green Belt, which performs particularly 

well in this location in terms of protecting the historic character of settlements and safeguarding the 

countryside from encroachment.  

 

4.22 It is noted from the masterplan that there is a proposed buffer zone to the south of Bladon to mitigate 

against potential landscape and visual impacts. There are a number of key sensitivities in this location 

including proximity of residential properties, proximity to the Bladon Conservation Area and the 

setting of the Blenheim World Heritage Site. It is considered that the proposed buffer area should be 

substantially increased to minimise impacts on sensitive receptors in this location. 

 

4.23 Proposed buffers adjacent to Ancient Woodland should be increased in this area to reduce impacts 

on the PROW network and provide opportunities for further woodland creation. The applicant is 

proposing a 15m buffer around Ancient Woodlands in accordance with Natural England guidance. It 

is considered that proposed buffer distances are designed to protect the root structure of trees rather 

than protecting the visual importance and sensitivity in the landscape of those woodlands and 

presenting real enhancement opportunities. Opportunities should be sought to increase woodland 

cover in the area where possible. There are two public rights of way along the eastern side of Bladon 

Heath. Stepping development away from these would mitigate the impacts on sensitive users of the 

public rights of way network and reduce the corridor effect of moving through large areas of solar 

panels over large distances. 

 

4.24 Restricting development in proximity to public rights of way that connect historic settlements and 

long distance trails such as the Green Belt Way and Wychwood Way would mitigate impacts on the 

setting of landscape and heritage assets and visual impacts on sensitive receptors such as users of 

public rights of way. The proposed development includes the erection of fencing adjacent to all public 

rights of way where panels are situated, and it is considered that this may have amenity impacts on 

people no longer attracted to using the public rights of way network for recreation. 

Southern Area 

 

4.25 The majority of the Southern Area is located in the administrative area of Vale of White Horse District 

Council. 

 

4.26 With regard to development in West Oxfordshire, the masterplan shows a number of cable route 

options linking across the river Thames between the Central and Southern Areas. 

 

Page 24



4.27 A key area of concern here is the impact of the Local Wildlife Site at Long Mead Meadow. The 

applicant’s assessment should ensure that any proposed routing of the cable corridor or method of 

trenching or horizontal directional drilling does not undermine the integrity of rare habitats within the 

Thames valley. 

Summary of Masterplan comments 

 

4.28 Further consideration of the constraints and opportunities and site topography in relation to the 

project area, should guide further revisions to the design and layout of the proposed development. 

Such revisions could result in a reduced scale of project, but would help to minimise the magnitude 

and significance of effects on a sensitive environment. The fact that the cable run routes appear to be 

flexible means that less sensitive sites could potentially be swapped in to compensate for reduced 

development in sensitive areas. 

 

4.29 Map 1 below illustrates a number of key constraints within and in close proximity to the Applicant’s 

proposed areas for solar panel development. Although the design and layout of the proposed solar 

farm has been shaped by the environmental sensitivities and the topography of the land to date, it is 

considered that there is still potential for significant adverse impacts as a result of the development 

 

Page 25



 

Map 1 -  Constraints and Opportunities in proximity to indicative solar development locations 

Page 26



  

Page 27



Thematic Chapters 

 

4.30 The representations set out below relate to the thematic chapters of the PEIR and highlight areas in 

which additional assessment is likely to be required to support the Environmental Assessment and 

enable a full detailed assessment of the likely significant impacts of the proposal both positive and 

negative. 

 

4.31 Extracts from the relevant National Policy Statements are included for context and to help frame the 

response. 

 

4.32 It is apparent that the assessment for certain thematic chapters of the PEIR is incomplete and it is 

recognised that more assessment needs to be undertaken to underpin the Environmental Statement 

and fully assess to impacts of the solar farm proposal. 

 

4.33 This indicates that the proposed scheme design and masterplan at this stage have been led primarily 

by land availability and proximity to the grid connection point, rather than a comprehensive assessment 

of environmental characteristics and constraints to guide a development that is well designed and 

sensitive to place. 

Historic Environment 

 

4.34 The historic environment includes all aspects of the environment resulting from the interaction 

between people and places through time, including all surviving physical remains of past human activity, 

whether visible, buried or submerged, landscaped and planted or managed flora. Those elements of 

the historic environment that hold value to this and future generations because of their historic, 

archaeological, architectural or artistic interest are called ”heritage assets”. A heritage asset may be 

any building, monument, site, place, area or landscape, or any combination of these. The sum of the 

heritage interests that a heritage asset holds is referred to as its significance. 

 

4.35 Some heritage assets have a level of significance that justifies official designation. Categories of 

designated heritage assets are: a World Heritage Site; Scheduled Monument; Listed Building; 

Registered Park and Garden; Registered Battlefield and Conservation Area. 

 

4.36 There are a number a number of heritage assets within and in close proximity to the proposed site 

boundary, as confirmed by chapter 7 of the PEIR. It is considered that the desk based assessment and 

field surveys undertaken by the applicant provide an adequate overview of the baseline heritage 

conditions as they relate to the proposed development area. 

 

4.37 Upon submission of the Environmental Statement, the applicant should provide a description of the 

significance of the heritage assets affected by the proposed development and the contribution of their 

setting to that significance. The level of detail should be proportionate to the importance of the 

heritage assets and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on 

the significance of the heritage asset. As a minimum the applicant should have consulted the relevant 

Historic Environment Record. 

 

4.38 It is noted that there is further assessment to be undertaken in this regard, to fully understand the 

impact on the setting and significance of heritage assets. 

 

4.39 Key to this will be the impact on the Blenheim Palace World Heritage Site. The Blenheim Palace World 

Heritage is an internationally significant heritage asset and makes a significant contribution to the 

Page 28



historic character and cultural heritage of West Oxfordshire as well as being of key importance to the 

local economy. 

 

4.40 It is noted that the proposed masterplan has taken care to exclude development from key view points 

into and out of the World Heritage Site and that a heritage impact assessment will be prepared to 

provide detail of the potential significant effects of the World Heritage Site.  

 

4.41 Paragraph 7.9.4.1 of the PEIR recognises that the Blenheim Palace WHS does not have a formally 

identified buffer zone, but as with any heritage asset it has a setting and changes within that setting 

may harm the significance of the asset. 

 

4.42 It should be noted that the reason for Blenheim Palace WHS not having a formally identified buffer 

zone is that the WHS is already provided with a high degree of protection for the protection of the 

WHS Outstanding Universal Value (OUV). Given the strong statutory and local plan protections for 

heritage assets, the presence and extent of the Oxford Green Belt and natural environment features 

such as the Cotswold AONB, coupled with the robust policies set out in the West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031, an additional level of designated protection such as a buffer zone is regarded by the as 

unnecessary. 

 

4.43 Regard should therefore be had to whether development proposals within the landscape surrounding 

the WHS and whether development in the Green Belt in particular would undermine the additional 

policy protection provided for the setting of the Blenheim Palace WHS.  

 

4.44 Any harmful impact on the significance of a designated heritage asset should be weighed against the 

public benefit of development, recognising that the greater the harm to the significance of the heritage 

asset the greater the justification will be needed for any loss. 

 

4.45 The updated proposals for the Botley West Solar Farm provide a range of mitigation measures to 

minimise impacts on designated and non designated heritage assets in proximity to the site. These 

measures include the avoidance and exclusion of heritage assets from the permanent project 

developable footprint and the adoption of no-dig approaches to development in areas of archaeological 

sensitivity. 

 

4.46 The preparation of a Landscape Management Plan will include details of mitigation planting around the 

development site, including the number, location, species and details of management and maintenance 

of planting. The Applicant explains that where practical, landscape mitigation planting will be 

established as early as reasonably practicable in the construction phase.  

 

4.47 WODC cannot comment on the suitability and effectiveness of proposed mitigation planting at this 

stage and will await details of the Outline Landscape and Ecology Management Plan. The applicant 

should have regard to comments made on the proposed masterplan, to identify where mitigation and 

enhancement measures should be focused, to minimise negative impact on the historic environment 

and heritage assets. 

 

4.48 It is recognised that further archaeological assessment is required to assess the required mitigation of 

impacts on buried archaeological remains. It is the view of the council that in order to minimise harm 

to archaeological remains, areas should be avoided and sufficiently buffered. 

 

4.49 No further mitigation is proposed to address cumulative impacts of the proposal with other planned 

developments in the area. The applicant considers that refinements to the project design will enable 

Page 29



the magnitude of impacts to be reduced and the consequent level of effect to also be reduced to a 

point where it is no longer significant. 

 

4.50 WODC consider that the proposed mitigation measures may not be sufficient to adequately address 

the impacts on the significance of heritage assets. 

 

4.51 Although development has been removed from the conservation areas at Bladon and Church 

Hanborough, it is considered that there is likely to be a residual impact on heritage assets in these 

locations, particularly on the setting of the conservation areas and listed buildings. 

 

4.52 In terms of the Church Hanborough Area, the proposed masterplan includes opportunities for 

enhancement within the Conservation Area, although it is not clear what the nature of the 

enhancements might be at this stage. The applicant proposes a permissive path to the south of the 

Conservation Area which will improve connectivity through the countryside and linking to existing 

public rights of way to the east of Lower Road. As such, according to the proposed masterplan, it will 

be possible to move between the Conservation Areas at Church Hanborough and Cassington through 

an almost unbroken arrangement of panels.  

 

4.53 Regard should be had to the impact of the setting of the conservation areas and Grade 1 Listed 

churches at both Cassington and Church Hanborough as a result of the scale and extent of the 

proposed development within the Central Area. 

 

4.54 The PEIR Non Technical Summary (Para 6.2.15) confirms that the effects on designated heritage assets 

as a result of change within their setting have been assessed as not significant. These effects are fully 

reversible in that they would cease following decommissioning of the Project. 

 

4.55 WODC is concerned that there will be negative impacts on the setting of Conservation Areas and 

Listed Buildings at Church Hanborough and Cassington Consideration should be given to how these 

impacts can be minimised or effectively mitigated, having regard to the comments on the masterplan 

set out above. 

 

Landscape and Visual Resources 

 

4.56 The landscape and visual effects of energy projects will vary on a case by case basis according to the 

type of development, its location and the landscape setting of the proposed development.  

 

4.57 WODC wish to emphasise that due to the scale of the proposal (890 Ha of development) the nature 

of the proposal (a Nationally Significant solar energy generating station) the sensitivity of the landscape  

(attractive, largely unspoilt rural landscape) and the extent of the proposed development within the 

Green Belt, that landscape and visual impacts are key to the assessment of the suitability of this 

proposal. 

 

4.58 The applicant should carry out a landscape and visual assessment and report it in the Environmental 

Statement. The landscape and visual assessment should include reference to any landscape character 

assessment and associated studies as a means of assessing landscape impacts relevant to the proposed 

project.  

 

4.59 It is recognised that the applicant has undertaken some landscape and visual impact assessment to 

date, but an assessment has not been undertaken for each of the representative viewpoints. 

Page 30



Photomontages and visualisations are only available for 18 of the 57 representative viewpoints at this 

time, which presents a degree of uncertainty in assessing the landscape and visual impacts, both positive 

and negative as a result of development. 

 

4.60 The Landscape and Visual Assessment baseline identified by the applicant for the development site 

comprises two distinct but connected parts –  

 landscape character baseline, including international, national and local designated landscapes 

 visual baseline. 

 

4.61 The LVIA makes no reference to tranquillity of the landscape. WODC feel that this should be a 

consideration in assessing the impacts of the proposal on the landscape character, due to the noise 

generating uses proposed within the development site.  

 

4.62 It is considered that the Landscape and Visual Resources chapter of the PEIR identifies the relevant 

landscape character evidence relevant to establishing the baseline landscape character for the 

development site. Appendix 8.1 of the PEIR provides comprehensive details of the relevant landscape 

character areas and types at national, regional and local level that are relevant to the project area. 

 

4.63 It confirms that the landscape character of West Oxfordshire is generally high quality, unspoilt 

attractive rural landscapes with some localised and variations in quality and condition. 

 

4.64 Appendix 8.2 of the PEIR sets out factors relating to landscape quality, including a range of factors that 

can be considered when identifying landscape value. It appears that there are omissions from this 

assessment that may contribute to the understanding of landscape quality across the development site, 

particularly in terms of cultural heritage. Regard should be had to the following plans and evidence in 

further refining development proposals; 

 

 There is a draft Nature Recovery Network for Oxfordshire2 which covers significant areas of 

the project area. Opportunities should be sought to improve ecological connectivity within 

the Nature Recovery Network and avoid fragmentation of habitats.  

 There is a Catchment Management Plan in place for the River Evenlode3. Consideration should 

be given to how compatible the development plans are with the vision and objectives of the 

Evenlode Catchment Management Plan 

 There is a comprehensive assessment of natural capital and ecosystem service provision 

available for the whole project site. Regard should be had to how habitats perform in the 

provision of ecosystem services within the development site. 

 The Wychwood Project Area covers a significant area of the site. Regard should be had to 

the aims of the Wychwood Project area, particularly in terms of restoring the landscape 

character and mix of habitats associated with the Royal Hunting Forest of Wychwood. 

 The Bladon Conservation Area is covered by a Conservation Area Character Appraisal which 

identifies important views out of the village to the south towards the development site. 

 Blenheim WHS Management Plan 2017 – Appendix 3 : Setting Study – Provides useful 

information on the setting of Blenheim Palace WHS, key views into and out of the park and 

potential forces for change. 

 

                                                           
2 https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/oxfordshires-nature/oxfordshires-nature-recovery-network  
3 https://assets-global.website-files.com/62602eef03c83769e0539df4/63d2d4199ff6fa5dba861fb5_river-
evenlode-smarter-water-catchment-plan%202021.pdf  

Page 31

https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/oxfordshires-nature/oxfordshires-nature-recovery-network
https://assets-global.website-files.com/62602eef03c83769e0539df4/63d2d4199ff6fa5dba861fb5_river-evenlode-smarter-water-catchment-plan%202021.pdf
https://assets-global.website-files.com/62602eef03c83769e0539df4/63d2d4199ff6fa5dba861fb5_river-evenlode-smarter-water-catchment-plan%202021.pdf


4.65 Landscape effects depend on the existing character of the local landscape, its current quality, how 

highly it is valued and its capacity to accommodate change. All of these factors need to be considered 

in judging the impact of a project on landscape. Virtually all nationally significant energy infrastructure 

projects will have effects on the landscape. Projects need to be designed carefully, taking account of 

the potential impact on the landscape. Having regard to siting, operational and other relevant 

constraints the aim should be to minimise harm to the landscape, providing reasonable mitigation 

where possible and appropriate. 

 

4.66 WODC considers that much of the proposed development area is within a highly valued and high 

quality landscape with limited capacity to accommodate significant change, particularly at the scale 

currently proposed. The council have suggested measures to reduce the impacts and mitigate the 

potential harms of the proposal. Further detailed assessment of a refined project design will be 

necessary to understand whether the benefits of utility scale solar development in West Oxfordshire 

would outweigh the harms. 

 

4.67 A conservation and landscape management plan will be required as part of any development consent 

order, to ensure that landscape enhancement and mitigation measures are managed over the lifetime 

of the project to ensure they achieve desired outcomes. 

 

4.68 The Non Technical Summary of the PEIR (Para 6.3.11) confirms that a number of potential impacts 

upon landscape and visual resources associated with the construction, operational and maintenance, 

and decommissioning phases of the Project, were identified. It is considered that in terms of landscape, 

effects would be limited.  

 

4.69 The applicant asserts that when considering the landscape character of the Project site and landscape 

character areas / types of the wider study area, significant landscape characterisation effects are 

unlikely. 

 

4.70 WODC questions this assessment and considers that the project would result in significant landscape 

characterisation effects, both s a result of the project itself and cumulatively with other proposed 

developments in proximity to the site. 

 

Ecology and Nature Conservation 

 

4.71 The Applicant’s Environmental Statement should clearly set out any effects on internationally, 

nationally and locally designated sites of ecological or geological conservation importance, on 

protected species and on habitats and other species identified as being of principal importance for the 

conservation of biodiversity. It is recognised that the PEIR only provides the preliminary findings of 

assessments undertaken to date and that more detailed information will be made available as part of 

the Environmental Statement when the DCO application is submitted. 

 

4.72 It is considered that the assessment of baseline characteristics presented in the PEIR is adequate, in 

terms of identifying designated sites for ecological and geological conservation importance. The PEIR 

also includes comprehensive assessment of protected habitats and species across the project area. It 

is considered that the baseline assessment and identification of relevant data sources and survey 

findings is acceptable in terms of defining the baseline, although additional assessment will be required 

to support future biodiversity net gain calculations. 

 

Page 32



4.73 There are questions about the proposed mitigation and enhancement measures where they relate to 

ecology and nature conservation however. It is not possible at this stage to take a fully informed view 

on the magnitude and significance of impacts on ecology and nature conservation without more detail 

on what is proposed in terms of the design of the project and details on implementation and 

management of environmental enhancements. 

 

4.74 In terms of the impact on ground nesting and wintering bird assemblages, the baseline assessment 

identifies a number of protected species to be present some of conservation importance. The 

Applicant’s masterplan indicates a substantial number of skylark plots across the development area, to 

mitigate against the loss of accessible habitat. It is unknown at this stage whether such measures will 

be adequate to compensate for the loss of habitat. 

 

4.75 The Applicant’s masterplan indicates that statutory designated ecological sites will be excluded from 

the development, but it is considered that habitats and species will be affected by development, 

particularly at the scale proposed. The applicant has stated an intention to achieve at least 70% 

biodiversity net gain across the project, but full details as to how this will be achieved will be reserved 

for the Environmental Statement. Such significant gains in biodiversity would be supported, particularly 

where they would contribute to meeting nature recovery objectives and build resilience to climate 

change, but it is not possible to comment on the suitability of measures proposed at this stage, due to 

the lack of information provided. 

 

4.76 It is considered that buffers to ancient woodlands could be increased and opportunities for further 

woodland enhancement could be identified, in order to increase habitat connectivity within the 

development site. 

 

4.77 It is anticipated that converting intensive agricultural land to other habitat may be a significant 

contributor to achieving 70% BNG across the site. Any calculations would need to demonstrated 

through completion of the DEFRA Metric.  

 

4.78 Development proposals provide many opportunities for the inclusion of beneficial biodiversity or 

geological features as part of good design. Such opportunities should be maximised in and around 

developments, using requirements or planning obligations where appropriate. 

Hydrology and Flood Risk 

 

4.79 Applications for energy projects of 1 hectare or greater in Flood Zone 1 and all proposals for energy 

projects located in Flood Zones 2 and 3 should be accompanied by a flood risk assessment (FRA). This 

should identify and assess the risks of all forms of flooding to and from the project and demonstrate 

how these flood risks will be managed, taking climate change into account. 

 

4.80 A flood risk assessment for the Project area is provided at Appendix 10.1 of the PEIR, which confirms 

that development within each of the three development areas would meet the requirements of the 

National Policy Statements and National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

4.81 The flood risk assessment includes a drainage strategy for the land parcels that would be occupied by 

solar panels following development. There is recognition that poor design and maintenance may result 

in increases to peak discharge and additional requirements for storm water management. 

 

4.82 Potential significant effects of the project as summarised in the Applicant’s non technical summary 

include increased flood risk, contamination of surface waters and damage to field drainage, water 

supply and drainage infrastructure. Taking into account mitigation measures the Applicant suggests 

Page 33



that no significant effects are likely to occur with respect to hydrology and flood risk during the 

construction, operation and decommissioning phases of the project. 

 

4.83 It is recognised however that the location and design of many of the infrastructure features of the 

project including the Primary Sub Station, Power Converter Stations and Transformers are yet to be 

determined and is not available to inform this stage of the PEIR.  

 

4.84 It is not possible to comment of the suitability and effectiveness of mitigation measures at this stage 

while the detailed design and layout of the project are yet to be finalised. 

 

4.85 Areas of potential concern and likely necessary locations for flood risk mitigation will be the foot of 

south facing slopes where solar panels are orientated downhill. The area of land to the north of 

Cassington is an area of particular focus where surface water impacts may need to be mitigated and 

managed. 

 

4.86 Also within the Evenlode Valley where the Catchment Management Plan seeks to reconnect the river 

channel with the flood plain, development proposals should not undermine such plans. 

Ground Conditions 

 

4.87 Applicants should safeguard any mineral resources on the proposed site as far as possible, taking into 

account the long-term potential of the land use after any future decommissioning has taken place. 

 

4.88 Where a proposed development has an impact upon a Mineral Safeguarding Area (MSA), it should be 

ensured that appropriate mitigation measures have been put in place to safeguard mineral resources. 

 

4.89 The Applicant’s ground conditions survey and assessment in the PEIR considers the potential impacts 

of the Project on the underlying aquifers, surface watercourses, human health (construction workers 

and future site users) land instability and mineral resources. The significance of effect ranges from 

temporary minor/moderate adverse effects with regard to off-site human health, to no change during 

the operational phase. The impacts are not considered significant. 

 

4.90 WODC agree with the scope and extent of the PEIR and support the ongoing consultation with 

Oxfordshire County Council as the Minerals and Waste Authority, to assess possible impacts on 

sterilisation of mineral reserves as a result of the project. 

Traffic and Transport 

 

4.91 The transport of materials, goods and personnel to and from a development during all project phases 

can have a variety of impacts on the surrounding transport infrastructure and potentially on connecting 

transport networks, for example through increased congestion. Impacts may include economic, social 

and environmental effects. Environmental impacts may result particularly from increases in noise and 

emissions from road transport. Disturbance caused by traffic and abnormal loads generated during the 

construction phase will depend on the scale and type of the proposal. 

 

4.92 If a project is likely to have significant transport implications, the applicant’s Environmental Statement 

should include a transport assessment. Applicants should consult the Highways Authorities as 

appropriate on the assessment and mitigation. 

 

4.93 Where appropriate, the applicant should prepare a travel plan including demand management 

measures to mitigate transport impacts. The applicant should also provide details of proposed 

Page 34



measures to improve access by public transport, walking and cycling, to reduce the need for parking 

associated with the proposal and to mitigate transport impacts. 

 

4.94 A new energy NSIP may give rise to substantial impacts on the surrounding transport infrastructure 

and these impacts should be mitigated, including during the construction phase of the development.  

 

4.95 The Applicant has obtained base traffic flow data from Oxfordshire County Council and the 

Department for Transport for the project area and WODC consider this to be representative of 

current conditions. Construction traffic flows have been estimated using reasonable assumptions and 

are considered to be suitable for assessment purposes. 

 

4.96 WODC are satisfied with the assessment of baseline traffic conditions for the project site, although it 

should be highlighted that the AADT data presented in table 12.11 of the PEIR appears to be quite 

dated, covering the period 2018/19. The applicant should ensure ongoing consultation with 

Oxfordshire County Council in the preparation of the Construction Traffic Management Plan to 

ensure that all relevant data is accurate and up to date. 

 

4.97 WODC agree that the construction phase of the project is likely to generate the greatest number of 

vehicle movements. 

 

4.98 An Outline Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) will be submitted in support of the 

application for development consent. A full cumulative assessment of traffic and transport impacts of 

the project along with other developments in the area will be set out in the ES. 

 

4.99 WODC look to Oxfordshire County Council as local Highway Authority for comments on the PEIR. 

WODC recognise that there will be traffic increases during the construction phase of the project and 

that cable trenching in the highway could cause traffic delays. The impacts of increased traffic 

movements and delays caused by trenching within the highway should be mitigated as far as possible, 

by restricting peak time HGV movement and concentrating trenching within highway verges where 

possible. 

Noise and Vibration 

 

4.100 WODC agree with the assessment of the baseline noise environment for the project area. The long-

term sound survey highlights that much of the area surrounding the Project site has a fairly low existing 

noise climate due to the rural nature of certain areas. The dominant sources of noise were noted to 

be traffic on local highway networks. 

 

4.101 The Applicant’s assessment considers noise and vibration effects due to all construction activities along 

the cable corridor during construction and decommissioning phases as well as noise effects due to the 

plant and equipment associated with the project site such as noise effects from the Power Converter 

Stations (PCS) and noise effects from the secondary, main and National Grid substations. 

 

4.102 The Project provides for a number of noise and vibration mitigation measures which will help avoid, 

reduce or offset likely adverse impacts and include the orientating and positioning substations to 

minimise noise levels at nearby receptors. Quieter equipment will be selected, where available and 

practicable, and mitigation measures such as acoustic barriers and enclosures will be specified where 

necessary. 

 

4.103 It is noted that the maximum design parameters for the power converter stations (Table 6.1: Solar 

design parameters) indicate a noise level of 67db at 10m distance. 

Page 35



 

4.104 The indicative masterplan shows the location of 156 power converter stations around the site.  PCS 

have the potential to generate significant noise levels (98db indicated at table 1.2 of Appendix 13.3 of 

PEIR) during the operational phase of the project. This is an area of concern for WODC as it is 

considered that the number of proposed PCS required and the likely close proximity to sensitive 

receptors mean that noise impacts are unlikely to be totally mitigated. The volume and frequency of 

noise generated by PCS will result in likely significant detrimental impacts on human health, amenity 

use of the countryside, tranquillity of the countryside and wildlife over a wide area.  

 

4.105 It is noted that an Operational Noise Management Plan (ONMP) will be prepared to identify the noise 

limits for the operation of the Project and the measures for how these limits would be monitored. It 

will be informed by a full assessment of operational noise to be undertaken once the plant design is 

complete. WODC cannot comment further at this stage. 

 

 

Climate Change 

 

4.106 Climate change is likely to mean that the UK will experience hotter, drier summers and warmer, 

wetter winters. There is a likelihood of increased flooding, drought, heatwaves and intense rainfall 

events, as well as rising sea levels. Adaptation is therefore necessary to deal with the potential impacts 

of these changes that are already happening. 

 

4.107 The Examining Authority should be satisfied that applicants for new energy infrastructure have taken 

climate change into account to ensure they have identified appropriate mitigation or adaptation 

measures. This should cover the estimated lifetime of the new infrastructure. 

 

4.108 The applicant states that the purpose of the Project is to provide a source of renewable energy and 

that the construction-stage effects in terms of carbon emissions must be considered together with the 

long-term operational effect in order to determine the overall lifetime effect of the Project.  

 

4.109 The majority of emissions arising from the project occur at Life Cycle Assessment stages A1-3. These 

stages cover the extraction of resources through to the manufacture of the solar panels.  

 

4.110 At this stage of planning and design, no embedded mitigation to reduce GHG emissions at the 

manufacturing stage of the PV cells has been specified, so it cannot be concluded that the GHG impacts 

at the construction stage are in keeping with current and emerging local and national climate policy 

regarding the transition towards net zero.  

 

4.111 The whole-life impact of the Project has been determined to have a beneficial effect that is significant 

when comparing to current UK electricity grid factors. Although a significant initial carbon cost of 

manufacturing and installation is incurred, by achieving a carbon payback period of 10 years (earliest 

estimated payback period) and providing subsequent net negative emissions in operation, the Project 

meets policy goals for the rate of carbon reduction in the context of UK carbon budgets. 

 

4.112 WODC have no comments to make on this assessment at this stage. 

  

Page 36



Socio Economics 

 

4.113 Where the project is likely to have socio-economic impacts at local or regional levels, the applicant 

should undertake and include in their application an assessment of these impacts as part of the ES. 

 

4.114 This assessment should consider all relevant socio-economic impacts, which may include the creation 

of jobs and training opportunities, effects on tourism and the cumulative effects of other developments 

taking place. 

 

4.115 The effects associated with providing employment opportunities as part of the Project have been 

assessed during all phases of development (construction, operation and maintenance and 

decommissioning). The employment generation associated with each phase of works has been 

independently assessed with all phases considered to have a beneficial impact. 

 

4.116 All other potential effects associated with key receptors were assessed as being not significant with 

the exception of the potential impact on the visitor economy during construction which has been 

assessed as adverse. This is, however, based on the information currently available and this aspect will 

be further assessed in the ES based on additional survey work which is currently being carried out. 

 

4.117 WODC has no further comments to make on the socio-economic assessment at this stage. 

Human Health 

 

4.118 Energy production has the potential to impact on the health and well-being of the population. Access 

to energy is clearly beneficial to society and to our health as a whole. However, the production, 

distribution and use of energy may have negative impacts on some people’s health. 

 

4.119 The Environmental Statement should assess these effects for each element of the project, identifying 

any adverse health impacts, and identifying measures to avoid, reduce or compensate for these impacts 

as appropriate. The impacts of more than one development may affect people simultaneously, so the 

cumulative impact on health should be considered. 

 

4.120 The direct impacts on health may include increased traffic, air or water pollution, dust, odour, 

hazardous waste and substances, noise, exposure to radiation, and increases in pests. 

 

4.121 New energy infrastructure may also affect the composition, size and proximity of the local population, 

and in doing so have indirect health impacts, for example if it in some way affects access to key public 

services, transport or the use of open space for recreation and physical activity. 

 

4.122 Data was gathered from publicly available public health evidence sources to inform the PEIR. This data 

shows that overall, physical health indicators (e.g. heart health, respiratory health), lifestyle indicators 

(e.g. diet, childhood obesity) and socioeconomic indicators (e.g. income, education levels, 

employment) perform better in the local study area compared to national averages. 

 

4.123 However, some indicators such as certain mental health indicators (e.g. depression), mortality related 

to air pollution, levels of physical activity and adult obesity perform worse than national levels. The 

health assessment has regard to such higher sensitivity. 

4.124 A number of potential impacts on human health associated with the construction, operational and 

maintenance, and decommissioning phases of the Project, were identified. These included access to 

open space, leisure and play; transport modes, access and connections; community identity, culture 

Page 37



and resilience; education and employment opportunities; environmental conditions; climate change; 

and wider societal infrastructure. With the measures adopted as part of the Project in place, the 

majority of these impacts result in adverse effects but are not significant. There are also several 

beneficial effects on human health that have been identified. 

 

4.125 WODC support measures to improve the health and well being of communities including increasing 

the public rights of way network within and around the development site. 

Agricultural Land and Public Rights of Way 

 

4.126 Applicants should seek to minimise impacts on the best and most versatile agricultural land and 

preferably use land in areas of poorer quality (grades 3b, 4 and 5) except where this would be 

inconsistent with other sustainability considerations.  

 

4.127 Applicants should also identify any effects and seek to minimise impacts on soil quality taking into 

account any mitigation measures proposed.  

 

4.128 Baseline agricultural land use and public rights of way were established using a detailed review of 

existing studies and datasets. In addition, soil surveys were undertaken to determine the quality and 

characteristics of agricultural land within the Project site. However, some areas within the Project site 

were not subject to soil surveys, due to dry soils or crop conditions. 

 

4.129 The soil surveys determined that the Project site predominantly comprised Agricultural Land 

Classification (ALC) Grade 3a (good quality) and Grade 3b (lower quality) agricultural land and four 

land holdings. ALC Grade 3a agricultural land is categorised as best and most versatile land, and 

considered the most capable of delivering crops for food and non-food uses. 

 

4.130 Desk based analysis identified the following public rights of way, which intersect the Project site: 

National Cycle Route 5; Oxford Greenbelt Way Long Distance Path; Shakespeare Way Long Distance 

Path; and several public footpaths and bridleways. 

 

4.131 A Public Rights of Way Management Plan (PRoWMP) will be developed in accordance with the Outline 

PRoWMP, which is to be submitted alongside the ES. The Outline PRoWMP will include measures to 

avoid severance and maintain access to affected public rights of way and other promoted routes during 

construction of the Project. 

 

4.132 A CoCP will be developed in accordance with the Outline CoCP, which is to be submitted alongside 

the ES. The Outline CoCP will include measures to maintain access to affected land holdings during 

construction of the Project and ensure that affected public rights of way are reinstated 

postconstruction. 

 

4.133 A Soil Management Plan (SMP) will be developed in accordance with the Outline SMP, which is to be 

submitted alongside the ES. The Outline SMP will contain measures to maintain the quality of affected 

agricultural soils, including the requirement to reinstate land (as near as possible) to its former 

condition post-construction. 

 

4.134 The Applicant identifies a range of significant cumulative effects that are likely to occur with respect 

to agricultural land and public rights of way including permanent adverse cumulative effect as a result 

of the permanent loss of Best and Most Versatile agricultural land during construction of the Project 

and temporary adverse cumulative effect on public rights of way, including footpaths and bridleways 

arising from disruption and reduced access during construction of the Project and other projects/plans. 

Page 38



 

4.135 WODC consider that a revised scheme design and exclusion of development from areas of best and 

most versatile agricultural land will minimise negative impacts on soil resources. The suggested 

revisions to the project design and development area suggested in section 4 of this response would 

significantly reduce the area of BMV agricultural land included in the project and would reduce impacts 

on the public rights of way network in proximity to settlements. 

Air Quality 

 

4.136 Infrastructure development can have adverse effects on air quality. The construction, operation and 

decommissioning phases can involve emissions to air which could lead to adverse impacts on health, 

on protected species and habitats, or on the wider countryside. 

 

4.137 Where the project is likely to have adverse effects on air quality the applicant should undertake an 

assessment of the impacts of the proposed project as part of the Environmental Statement (ES). 

 

4.138 Air quality considerations should be given substantial weight where a project would lead to a 

deterioration in air quality in an area, or leads to a new area where air quality breaches any national 

air quality limits. 

 

4.139 During construction, the key pollutant is dust, covering both the particulate matter fraction that is 

suspended in the air that can be breathed, and the deposited dust that has fallen out of the air onto 

surfaces and which can potentially cause temporary annoyance effects. Property, human-health and 

vegetation (ecological receptors) are all potentially affected. 

 

4.140 The preparation and implementation of a Dust Management Plan (which would be approved by the 

Local Authority), which would contain measures to reduce the potential impact of dust generated 

during construction, such as water spraying, covering of dusty materials and speed limits on site. 

 

4.141 WODC support the implementation of appropriate dust control measures during the construction 

phase to minimise significant effects with respect to air quality during the project. 

 

Community Benefits 

 

4.142 It is noted from the information provided in the Phase 2 Community Consultation Leaflet, that the 

Applicant is proposing a range of community benefits and opportunities beyond solar. 

 

4.143 WODC support the provision of community benefits arising from the scheme and will seek to secure 

a Community Benefits Agreement (CBA) with the Applicant, to support the delivery of community 

benefit and environmental improvement projects  in the area. 

 

4.144 In terms of financial benefits and the opportunity for a community benefit fund, WODC consider that 

a £/MW/Annum contribution would be appropriate to reflect the scale of the scheme and to secure 

benefits over the lifetime of the project. 

 

4.145 It is considered that a rate of £500 per MW per year may be appropriate 

 

 

Page 39



 

 

 

 

Page 40



 
 
 
 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and Date of 

Committee 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 2 FEBRUARY 2024 

Subject FREQUENCY OF SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Wards Affected None 

Accountable Member Councillor Julian Cooper – Chair, Development Control Committee. 

Email: julian.copper@westoxon.gov.uk   

Accountable Officer 

 
Andrew Brown – Business Manager, Democratic Services. 

Email: andrew.brown@publicagroup.uk   

Report Author Andrew Brown – Business Manager, Democratic Services. 

Email: andrew.brown@publicagroup.uk  

Purpose To allow the Development Control Committee to consider the frequency 

of Sub-Committee meetings.  

Annexes Nil. 

Recommendation That Development Control Committee Resolves to: 

1. Agree that the frequency of sub-committee meetings in 2024/25 

will be either: 

a) 4-weekly; or 

b) monthly. 

Corporate Priorities  Working Together for West Oxfordshire  

Key Decision NO 

Exempt NO  

Consultees/ 

Consultation  

Business Manager for Development Management;  

Director of Governance. 

 

  

Page 41

Agenda Item 5

mailto:julian.copper@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.brown@publicagroup.uk
mailto:andrew.brown@publicagroup.uk


 
 
 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report invites the committee to consider the frequency of sub-committee meetings. The 

options are to hold sub-committee meetings 4-weekly (as at present), or monthly. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Development Control Committee has two sub-committees: 

 The Uplands Sub-Committee; and 

 The Lowlands Sub-Committee. 

2.2 The Sub-Committees have responsibility for determining planning applications within their 

defined ward areas, other than those of strategic significance that affect the district as a whole 

or are delegated to officers. 

2.3 The Development Control Committee last considered the frequency of sub-committee 

meetings on 7 November 2022. The Committee decided (on the Chair’s casting vote) to 

maintain the existing pattern of 4-weekly meetings. 

2.4 The programme of meetings for 2024/25 will be considered by Council on 31 January 2024 

and currently shows a 4-weekly pattern of sub-committee meetings. There is sufficient 

flexibility to adjust the programme should the Development Control Committee decide to 

change the frequency of sub-committee meetings from 4-weekly to monthly. 

3. FREQUENCY OF SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

3.1 Table 1 below sets out the average length and number of applications each sub-committee 

has dealt with in the period since the Development Control Committee last considered the 

frequency of sub-committee meetings, in November 2022, up to the end of 2023. 

Table 1: Sub-committee business and duration 

Sub-

Committee 
# meetings Average 

meeting 

length  

(hh:mm) 

Shortest 

meeting 

length 

(hh:mm) 

Longest 

meeting 

length 

(hh:mm) 

Average 

number of 

applications 

Lowlands 15 01:50 00:26 03:06 4.07 

Uplands 15 01:48 01:04 02:37 3.53 

 

3.2 The table shows that the two sub-committees deal with a similar number of applications and 

have a very similar average meeting length, which is under 2 hours. Within that, the length of 

Lowlands meetings has been more variable, with 3 meetings lasting less than one hour and 4 

meetings lasting longer than the longest Uplands meeting. 

3.3 The decision to move away from a monthly to a 4 weekly cycle was based on the fact that 

planning decisions have to be made within 8 weeks and by introducing 4 periods in the year 

Page 42



 
 
 
 
when there had to be at least a 5-week cycle (12 x 4 is 48 as opposed to 52) meant that some 

applications were impossible to determine within the relevant timeframe 

3.4 A new factor has emerged in that since November 2022 the Council has implemented the 

live streaming of committee and sub-committee meetings and consequently the resource 

impact of holding each meeting has increased. The additional time for setting up, testing and 

packing away the microphones and webcasting equipment and managing the live stream during 

a meeting is estimated to be half a day of officer time per meeting.  

3.5 Table 1 cannot be used to predict future business but based on the figures above there would 

be scope for the Committee to slightly reduce the number of meetings held, from 4-weekly 

to monthly, while maintaining an average meeting length of around 2 hours. 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5. Do nothing and retain a 13-meeting cycle as at present. 

5.1 An alternative option would be to replace the two area sub-committees with a single sub-

committee which meets either 4-weekly or monthly. This is not recommended as the volume 

of business and the geographical make up of the district are considered to warrant having two 

area sub-committees. 

5.2 Planning applications need to be determined within set timescales and reducing the frequency 

of sub-committee meetings to six-weekly or bi-monthly would significantly impact the 

Council’s ability to determine planning applications in a timely fashion, so this is not 

recommended as an option. 

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Members are able to claim travel to expenses for attending meetings. Moving to monthly 

meetings would reduce the number of sub-committee meetings held annually by two, which 

would be expected to translate to a marginal decrease in allowance claims. There are no other 

financial implications. 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

8. RISK ASSESSMENT 

8.1 There are no risks associated with the two options before the Committee. 

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT 

9.1 There are no impacts on equalities. 

10. CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Moving to monthly meetings would reduce the number of meetings held annually by two, 

which would have a marginal reduction in the emissions associated with travel to and from 

meetings. 

Page 43



 
 
 
 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

11.1 None. 

 

(END) 

Page 44


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	Minutes , 24/05/2023 Development Control Committee

	4 Botley West Solar Farm - Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP) - Response to Statutory Pre-Application Consultation.
	Botley West Consultation Response Draft JANUARY 2024

	5 Frequency of Sub-Committee Meetings

